

From: Luis Izzo <Luis.Izzo@ablawyers.com.au>

Sent: Friday, 27 March 2020 2:02 PM

To: Chambers - Ross J <Chambers.Ross.j@fwc.gov.au>; COVID19Applications <COVID19Applications@fwc.gov.au>; ROSS, Justice <ross.j@fwc.gov.au>

Cc: Nigel Ward <Nigel.Ward@ablawyers.com.au>; Barklamb, Scott <Scott.Barklamb@australianchamber.com.au>; Trevor Clarke <tclarke@actu.org.au>; Michael Rizzo <mrizzo@asu.asn.au>; dan.williams@minterellison.com; Stephen Smith <Stephen.Smith@aigroup.com.au>

Subject: AM2020/20 - Clerks Private Sector Award 2010

Dear Sir/Madam

Please find attached a revised draft determination that ACCI and Ai Group are seeking to have made by the Commission.

The ASU has provided its consent to the variations contained in the attached document.

Yours faithfully

Luis Izzo

Managing Director – Sydney Workplace
Australian Business Lawyers & Advisors

140 Arthur Street North Sydney NSW 2060

Dir: +612 9458 7640 | Fax: +612 9954 5029 | Mob: 0408 109 622

Tel: +612 9458 7005 | Web: www.ablawyers.com.au |  [LinkedIn](#)



AUSTRALIAN BUSINESS
Lawyers & Advisors

Experts make things simple

Workplace + Employment

Corporate + Commercial

**Workplace Relations and Employment Law
Team of the Year**

2019 | 2018 | 2016





DETERMINATION

Fair Work Act 2009

s.157—FWC may vary etc. modern awards if necessary to achieve modern awards objective

**Australian Chamber of Commerce and Industry;
The Australian Industry Group**
(AM2020/10)

CLERKS—PRIVATE SECTOR AWARD 2010
[MA000002]

Clerical industry

JUSTICE ROSS, PRESIDENT
DEPUTY PRESIDENT CLANCY
COMMISSIONER BISSETT

MELBOURNE, **XX MARCH 2020**

Application to vary the Clerks—Private Sector Award 2010.

A. Further to decision [[2020] FWCFB XXXX] issued by the Full Bench on XX March 2020, the above award is varied as follows:

~~1. In the Table of Contents add a new Schedule I.~~

1. By inserting Schedule I as follows:

Schedule I—Award Flexibility During the COVID-19 Pandemic

I.1 The provisions of ~~this schedule~~Schedule I are aimed at preserving the ongoing viability of businesses and preserving jobs during the COVID-19 pandemic and not to set any precedent in relation to award entitlements after its expiry date.

I.2 Schedule I operates from ~~–28~~ March 2020 until 30 June 2020. The period of operation can be extended on application to the Fair Work Commission.

I.2 During the operation of Schedule I, the following provisions apply:

I.2.1 Operational flexibility

(a) As directed by their employer, where necessary an An employee will perform ~~all–any~~ duties that are within their skill and competency regardless of their classification under clause 15–Classifications and Schedule B–Classifications,

provided that the duties are safe, and that the employee is licensed and qualified to perform them, ~~where necessary~~.

~~(b) An employer must not reduce an employee's pay if the employee is. No employee shall have their pay reduced as a result of being~~ directed to perform duties in accordance with ~~this~~ clause I.2.1.

I.2.2 Part-time employees working from home

Instead of clause 11.5 ~~(Part-time employment)~~, an employer is required to roster ~~for~~ a part-time employee who is working from home by agreement with the employer, ~~the employer is required to roster the employee~~ for a minimum of ~~two~~ 2 consecutive hours on any shift.

I.2.3 Casual employees working from home

Instead of clause 12.4 ~~(Casual employment)~~, for an employer must pay a casual employee who is working from home by agreement with the employer, ~~the employee is entitled to~~ a minimum payment of ~~two~~ 2 hours' work at the appropriate rate.

I.2.4 Ordinary hours of work for employees working from home

- (a) Instead of clause 25.1(b) ~~(Ordinary hours of work (other than shiftworkers))~~, for employees working from home by agreement with the employer where an employee requests and the employer agrees, the spread of ordinary hours of work for day workers is between 6.00 am and 11.00 pm, Monday to Friday, and between 7.00 am and 12.30 pm on Saturday, ~~for employees working from home by agreement with the employer~~.
- (b) Day workers are not shiftworkers for the purposes of any penalties, loadings or allowances under the award, including for the purposes of clause 28.
- (c) The facilitative provision in clause 25.2(2) ~~(Ordinary hours of work (other than shiftworkers))~~, which allows the spread of hours to be altered, will not operate for the employees referred to in ~~sub~~clause I.2.4(a)(d).

I.2.5 Agreed temporary reduction in ordinary hours

- (a) An employer and the full-time and part-time employees in a workplace or section of a workplace, may agree to temporarily reduce ordinary hours of work for the employees in the workplace or section for a specified period while ~~this schedule~~ Schedule I is in operation.
- (b) At The approval of at least 75% of the full-time and part-time employees in the relevant workplace or section must approve any agreement to temporarily reduce ordinary hours.
shall be required.

- (c) For the purposes of ~~sub~~clause I.2.5(a)(g), ordinary hours of work may be temporarily reduced:
- (i) For full time employees, to not fewer than 75% of the full-time ordinary hours applicable to an employee immediately prior to the implementation of the temporary reduction in ordinary hours.
 - (ii) For part-time employees, to not fewer than 75% of the part-time employee's ~~ordinary~~ agreed hours immediately prior to the implementation of the temporary reduction in ordinary hours.
- (de) Where a reduction in hours takes effect under ~~sub~~clause I.2.5(a)(g), the employee's ordinary hourly rate will be maintained but the weekly wage will be reduced by the same proportion.
- (ed) Nothing in ~~this schedule~~ Schedule I prevents an employer and an individual employee agreeing in writing (including by electronic means) to reduce the employee's hours or to move have- the an employee ~~move~~ temporarily from full-time to part-time hours of work, with a commensurate reduction in the minimum weekly wage.
- (fe) ~~If an~~ For an employee's ~~whose~~ hours have been reduced in accordance with ~~sub~~clause I.2.5(a)(g):
- (i) the employer must not unreasonably refuse an employee request to engage in reasonable secondary employment; and
 - (ii) the employer must consider all reasonable employee requests for training, professional development and/or study leave.
- (gf) For the purposes of ~~sub~~clause I.2.5(a)(g), where there is any reduction in the ordinary hours of work for full-time or part-time employees in a workplace or section during the period ~~this schedule~~ Schedule I is operation, all relevant accruals and all entitlements on termination of employment will continue to be based on each employee's weekly ordinary hours of work prior to the commencement of ~~this schedule~~ Schedule I.
- (hg) For the purposes of ~~sub~~clause I.2.5(a)(g), the ~~support approval~~ of employees shall be determined by a vote of employees. In order for the vote to be valid, the employer must comply with the following requirements:
- (i) Where any of the employees are known to be members of the Australian Services Union or another organisation, the ASU or other organisation shall be informed before the vote takes place.
 - (ii) Prior to the vote of employees, the employer shall provide the employees with the contact details of the ASU, should they wish to contact the ASU for advice; and-

- (iii) The employer must notify the Fair Work Commission by emailing XXXX@fwc.gov.au that the employer proposes to conduct a vote under ~~this schedule~~Schedule I. The employer shall provide the work email addresses of the employees who will be participating in the vote, to the Commission. The Commission will then distribute the ASU COVID-19 Information Sheet to the employees prior to the vote. The Commission shall list the name of the business on a register which will be accessible to the ASU, upon request, for the period when ~~this schedule~~Schedule I is in operation.
- (iv) The vote shall not take place until at least 24 hours after the requirements of ~~paragraph clause I.2.5(g)~~(i), (ii) and (iii) have been met.

I.2.6 Annual leave

- (a) Employers and individual employees may agree to ~~the takingtake of~~ up to twice as much annual leave at a proportionately reduced rate for all or part of any agreed or directed period away from work, including any close-down.
- (b) Instead of clauses 29.6, 29.7 and 29.8 (Annual leave), an employer may direct an employee to take any annual leave that has accrued, subject to considering the employee's personal circumstances, by giving at least one week's notice, or any shorter period of notice that may be agreed. A direction to take annual leave shall not result in an employee having less than ~~two~~2 weeks of accrued annual leave remaining.

I.2.7 Close down

- (a) Instead of clause 29.5 (Annual leave), and subject to ~~sub~~clause I.2.7(b)(e), an employer may:
 - (i) require an employee to take annual leave as part of a close-down of its operations by giving at least one week's notice ~~as part of a close-down of its operations~~, or part of its operations, or any shorter period of notice that may be agreed; and
 - (ii) where an employee who has not accrued sufficient leave to cover part or all of the close-down, the employee is to be allowed paid annual leave for the period for which they have accrued sufficient leave and given unpaid leave for the remainder of the closedown.
- (b) ~~Subelaue (p) Clause I.2.7(a)~~ does not permit an employer to require an employee to take leave for a period beyond the period of operation of ~~this schedule~~Schedule I.
- (c) Where an employee is placed on unpaid leave pursuant to clause I.2.7(a), the period of unpaid leave will count as service for the purposes of relevant award and NES entitlements.

2. By updating the table of contents and cross-references accordingly.

B. This determination comes into effect on 28 March 2020. In accordance with s.165(3) of the Fair Work Act 2009 this determination does not take effect until the start of the first full pay period that starts on or after 28 March 2020.

PRESIDENT

Printed by authority of the Commonwealth Government Printer